
 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Fredonia Government Center 

242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, WI 

August 7, 2014 

 

The regular village board meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by President Chuck Lapicola.  

Present: Chuck Lapicola, Jill Bertram, Fritz Buchholtz, Donald Dohrwardt, Lisa Dohrwardt, 

Scott Ehaney, and John Long.  Also present:  Al Bruhn, Dave Czarnecki, Carol Dixon, Victoria 

White, Mark Jaeger, Mike Davel, Roger Strohm and Jo Ann Wagner.    

 

Pledge of Allegiance 
All stood and recited the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 

Consent Agenda 
The minutes of the July 24, 2014 village board meeting, the General Fund, Water and Sewer bills 

with the additional list, the operator license for Lea Fechter, and the special gathering beer and 

wine license for Divine Savior Home and School Association were approved on a MOTION by 

Don Dohrwardt, seconded by Ehaney, and carried.   

 

Open Session for Citizen Comments and Questions 

Lisa Dohrwardt noted the Fredonia Area Garden Club is weeding at the Fredonia entrance sign 

and will be adding plants. 

 

Request by Victoria White to Reconsider Extension for Czarnecki 
Victoria White stated she was attacked by Czarnecki’s dog three times and has been bitten twice.  

She has had surgery on her hand and presented pictures of the hand that was bitten.  White stated 

the Czarnecki dog charges the apartment door when she walks by.  She does not understand why 

the village extended the time for removing the dog.  White stated she is concerned for her safety 

and the safety of others.  White noted her dog is a service dog.  The Czarnecki dog is a small 

terrier mix.  Bertram questioned if White was trying to separate the dogs at the time of the bite.  

White stated her instinct is to protect her dog.  Bertram noted it is best not to get between two 

fighting dogs.  There have not been any recent incidents.  Buchholtz stated the Czarneckis’ are 

trying to move out.  The dog will be leaving.  Davel explained the two dogs were fighting and 

White tried to separate the dogs when she was bit.  Czarnecki was cited.  This is standard 

practice.  Because it was the second bite the Czarnecki’s received a letter requesting the removal 

of the dog from within the village.  Davel felt the extension of time was reasonable.  Davel stated 

he has informed both parties of steps they can take to preclude any problems.  Davel stated it is 

important to note there have been no cases of bites to anyone else.  The dog has not been 

targeting people.  It targeted another dog.  Davel supports the decision of the village board.  

However, if it happens again the village can seize the dog.  Don Dohrwardt noted that Czarnecki 

has purchased a muzzle for the dog.  White questioned if the village can guarantee her safety.  

Lapicola stated the village can’t guarantee anyone’s safety.  The board is trying to work with 

everyone.  (White left).  Carol Dixon questioned if White had reported the initial incident if 

things would have been different.  Davel stated the first incident was handled by the Ozaukee 

County Sheriff’s Department.  A dog bite is a municipal violation.  Davel noted that shortly after 

the village board meeting he had contacted Czarnecki and White about the extension.  Dixon 

stated she saw White’s hand after the dog bite.  Dog bites are very painful.  Davel stated both 

parties have the responsibility to control their dog.  Dixon stated that two times the Czarnecki 

dog was unleashed.  Davel stated the second time it was on the leash and slipped out of it.  Dixon 

questioned if the dog is out and not on a leash if White should call immediately.  Davel stated if 

the dog bites anyone again the dog will be seized. (Dixon and Czarnecki left) 

 

Unfinished Business 
CONTRACT WITH RUEKERT MIELKE TO PROVIDE STORMWATER AND 

WASTEWATER EXPERTISE:  Strohm stated he attended the meeting today but felt they 

should wait another month or two before the village commits.  Seven or eight municipalities 

were represented at the meeting.  Don Dohrwardt felt the group should only include 

municipalities with like interest. 

 

Report from Fire Chief 
No report.  Before the board meeting a tour of the Fire Department was conducted. 

 



Fredonia Village Board 

August 7, 2014 

Page 2 

 

Report from Village Marshal on Operations of Village 
The report from the Village Marshal was reviewed.  Davel reported the internet access at the 

Marshal’s office has been improved with a new direct line from the water tower.  This will allow 

his officers to update some programs by year end.  Davel stated when Fredonia Avenue is 

improved the county will determine the cost to connect to Time Warner.  (Davel left) 

 

Report from Director of Public Works on Operations of Village 

The report from the Director of Public Works was reviewed.   

 

“CHILDREN AT PLAY” SIGN:  The request for “Children at Play” signs in the Fox Glen 

Subdivision was approved on a MOTION by Don Dohrwardt, seconded by Lapicola, and 

carried. 

 

WE ENERGIES PLANS FOR ELECTRIC LINES:  Strohm stated he has met with WE Energies 

regarding their plans for the power lines in the village.  The current plan for Fredonia Avenue is 

to “push” the poles over six inches.  Some poles on Fredonia Avenue are also Frontier poles.  

Service drops will come from the south side of the street to the house.  WE  Energies is offering a 

$200,000 credit if the village wants to bury the lines.  Strohm stated the village needs to 

determine projects.  He will contact Time Warner and Frontier to find out what they are doing 

with their poles and lines.  Lapicola noted he has asked for their conduit requirements but have 

not heard anything.  Lapicola noted the main purpose is to re-pave the street and do the utilities 

at the same time.  Bruhn commented that electric, telephone and cable line have different spacing 

requirements. 

 

CONCRETE PLANTERS:  The Village of Grafton is selling some concrete planters for $500 

each.  Bertram presented pictures showing pitting along the bottom of the planters.  Pictures 

were also presented of less expensive planters that could be used.  The consensus of the village 

board was “thanks, but no thanks”. 

 

Report from Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator 
Strohm reported that Nelsen was going to attend the meeting but his fiancé is in the hospital.   
 

Report from Clerk-Treasurer on Operations of Village 
The report from the Clerk-Treasurer was reviewed.  It was noted the Partisan Primary election is 

on Tuesday. 

 

Disc Golf Course 
TEE MATERIAL:  Lapicola stated a disc golf course in Michigan uses rubber T-pads.  They are 

easy to place and with a bolt in each corner will not move.  Strohm stated a rubber mat is 250 

pounds and 5/8“ thick.  The cost for a 12’ x 6’ pad is $185.  They are made in Kenosha.  Ehaney 

questioned the durability of the pads.  After discussion a MOTION was made by Long, 

seconded by Ehaney, to purchase one rubber T-pad for the disc golf course.  Motion carried. 

 

TEE PAD CONSTRUCTION PROJECT:  Strohm stated the bids for the tee pad construction 

will be tabled until more information is received on the rubber T-pads.  Dohrwardt commented 

that Tendick’s Park has revenue of $11,000 so far this year.  Bertram stated it costs $5 for a 

round of disc golf at Tendick’s.  A season pass if $45. 

 

Utilities Committee – August 5, 2014 Meeting 
The minutes from the Utilities Committee meeting were reviewed.   

 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR WWTP ENGINEERING:  Long stated Statement 

of Qualifications were received from six engineering firms.  After review the committee is 

recommending Strand, Ruekert Mielke and McMahon as the engineering firms to request 

proposals from in the future.  Lapicola noted he was not impressed with McMahon.  Long stated 

the engineering firms would not be on retainer but would be asked to submit proposals on future 

projects.  Possible projects in the future include phosphorous, bio-tower, aeration basins, 

clarifiers and sludge storage.  Long stated projects will need to be phased.  The purpose of the 

SOQ’s was to choose three companies to work with and to obtain numbers for budgeting 

purposes.  A MOTION was made by Don Dohrwardt, seconded by Ehaney, to approve Strand, 

Ruekert Mielke, and McMahon Engineers as the “go to” engineering firms for the next five years 

for Wastewater projects.  Motion carried. 



Fredonia Village Board 

August 7, 2014 

Page 3 

 

 

CELL PHONE UPGRADES:  The Verizon price for two smart phones is $40 per month per 

phone plus $40 per month for 2 GB of shared data.  The cost to purchase each phone is $100.  

The smart phones can be used to monitor the SCADA at the WWTP.  Lapicola suggested they 

also contact Republic who has a data plan for $19 per month and works off the Sprint network.  

Strohm noted the battery on Nelsen’s phone lasts about ten minutes.  The Personnel Committee 

may want to add something to the Employee Handbook about use of the phones.  After 

discussion a MOTION was made by Don Dohrwardt, seconded by Buchholtz, to authorize the 

Director of Public Works to check with Republic for the cost to purchase two smart phones and 2 

GB of data coverage and then to go with the better deal of Verizon or Republic.  Motion carried. 

 

SLUDGE HAULING:  Long stated sludge hauling will be handled this fall by the new owner of 

Schwind Trucking at the same price as before. 

 

FREDONIA AVENUE WATER MAIN PROJECT:  Four bids were received for the Fredonia 

Avenue water main project.  The low bid is $830,277.70 compared to the June bid of $680,000.   

The difference of $150,000 is the cost of the asphalt to patch the road.  Discussion followed on 

the effect of two construction years on the businesses on Fredonia Avenue, if the asphalt patch 

could be less than the 5” specified thereby reducing the cost, if the project should be re-bid with 

an early spring construction, or if the project should again be added to the Fredonia Avenue 

project.  If the water main project is completed this year it will allow for settling before the street 

is paved.  If the water main project is completed next year at the time of the street project the 

cost of asphalting will be saved.  The bids will need to be reviewed to see if PTS is still the low 

bidder if the asphalt portion of the bid is removed.  A MOTION was made by Lapicola, 

seconded by Don Dohrwardt, to have the Director of Public Works review the bids to determine 

the low bidder with the asphalt portion removed and to see if the contractor would honor the 

price for spring completion.  This will then be brought back to the village board.  Motion 

carried. 

 

FREDONIA AVENUE AND EDMARO STREET SANITARY SEWER REPAIRS:  One bid 

was received for the sanitary sewer repairs on Fredonia Avenue and Edmaro Street.  A 

MOTION was made by Long, seconded by Don Dohrwardt, to award the sanitary sewer repairs 

to Visu-Sewer at $98,648 base bid.  Motion carried. 

 

Personnel Committee – July 24 and July 28 Meetings 
Buchholtz reported the Personnel Committee reviewed the proposed wage scale.  Some changes 

were requested and will be reviewed by the Committee before recommending to the village 

board. 

 

Closed Session 
Per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85 (1)(c) the village board convened into closed session on a 

MOTION by Ehaney, seconded by Buchholtz, and carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 

 

(The Clerk left after a portion of the closed session and the minutes were then taken by the 

village president and transcribed by the village clerk.) 

 

Adjourn Closed Session and Reconvene into Open Session 
Closed session adjourned and the village board reconvened into open session. 

 

Clerk-Treasurer Position 
A MOTION was made by Buchholtz, seconded by Ehaney, and carried to appoint Sandi 

Tretow as the village Clerk-Treasurer as discussed in closed session.  This will take effect upon 

the retirement of Jo Ann Wagner.  In appreciation for the many years of service a $3,000 

retirement gift will be placed in the North Shore Bank health reimbursement account for 

Wagner. 

 

Administrative Assistant 
A MOTION was made by Buchholtz, seconded by Don Dohrwardt, to advertise immediately for 

a part time administrative assistant.  Motion carried. 
 

Correspondence 
Correspondence received and reviewed include: 



Fredonia Village Board 

August 7, 2014 

Page 4 

 

 Vision 2050 workshops 

 Request from John Donald for payment of invoice for driveway repair.  The consensus of 

the board was to not respond to the letter as the village has no culpability in the matter. 
 

Items for Future Consideration 

None 
 

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

 

Jo Ann Wagner 

Clerk-Treasurer 


